

Standing Committee (Environmental)



Wednesday 19 July 2023



CITY OF BELMONT

Standing Committee (Environmental)

Minutes

Table of Contents

Wednesday 19 July 2023

Item Subject Heading

Page

1	Offi	cial Opening	5
2	Арс	blogies and leave of absence	5
3	Dec	larations of interest that might cause a conflict	5
	3.1	Financial interests	5
	3.2	Disclosure of interest that may affect impartiality	5
4	Anr	nouncements by the Presiding Member (without discussion)	5
	4.1	Announcements	5
	4.2	Declarations by Members who have not given due considerations to all matters	
		contained in the business papers presently before the meeting	6
5	Cor	nfirmation of Minutes	6
	5.1	Standing Committee (Environmental) Meeting held 18 October 2021	6
6	Que	estions by Members on which due notice has been given (without discussion	n)
			6
7	Nev	v business of an urgent nature approved by the person presiding or by	
	dec	ision	6
8	Que	estions by members without notice	6
9	Bus	siness adjourned from a previous meeting	7
10	Info	ormation items	7
11	lten	ns requiring recommendation to Council	7
	11.1	Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023 - 2033	7
12	Reg	jister update of items	47
13	Nex	t Meeting	47
14	Clo	sure	47

Attachments Index

Attachment 11.1.1 – Item 11.1 refers

Minutes

Present

Cr S Wolff (Presiding Member) Cr D Sessions (Deputy Presiding Member) Cr P Marks, Mayor Cr B Ryan

In attendance

Mr J ChristieChief Executive OfficerMr D BoylanActing Director Infrastructure ServicesMr S ReevesManager Parks, Leisure and EnvironmentMs M PhillipsGovernance Officer

Observers

Cr N Carter Cr R Rossi South Ward West Ward

South Ward

West Ward

East Ward East Ward

I Official Opening

6.30pm The Presiding Member welcomed all those in attendance and declared the meeting open.

The Presiding Member read aloud the Acknowledgement of Country.

Acknowledgement of Country

Before I begin, I would like to acknowledge the Whadjuk Noongar people as the Traditional Owners of this land and pay my respects to Elders past, present and emerging.

I further acknowledge their cultural heritage, beliefs, connection and relationship with this land which continues today.

2 Apologies and leave of absence

Nil.

3 Declarations of interest that might cause a conflict

3.1 Financial interests

Nil.

3.2 Disclosure of interest that may affect impartiality

Nil.

4 Announcements by the Presiding Member (without discussion)

4.1 Announcements

Nil.

4.2 Declarations by Members who have not given due considerations to all matters contained in the business papers presently before the meeting

Nil.

5 Confirmation of Minutes

5.1 Standing Committee (Environmental) Meeting held 18 October 2021

Officer Recommendation

Marks moved, Sessions seconded

That the Minutes of the Standing Committee (Environmental) Meeting held on 18 October 2021 be confirmed as a true and accurate record.

4 votes to 0

For: Marks, Ryan, Sessions, Wolff Against:

6 Questions by Members on which due notice has been given (without discussion)

Nil.

7 New business of an urgent nature approved by the person presiding or by decision

Nil.

8 Questions by members without notice

Nil.

9 Business adjourned from a previous meeting

Nil.

10 Information items

Nil.

I I Items requiring recommendation to Council

II.I Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023 - 2033

Voting Requirement	:	Simple Majority
Subject Index	:	30/003
Location/Property Index	:	N/A
Application Index	:	N/A
Disclosure of any Interest	:	Nil
Previous Items	:	Nil
Applicant	:	Nil
Owner	:	Nil
Responsible Division	:	Infrastructure Services

Council role

Executive The substantial direction setting and oversight role of the Council eg adopting plans and reports, accepting tenders, directing operations, setting and amending budgets.

Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to seek Council endorsement to advertise the Draft Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023 - 2033 (Attachment 11.1.1) for public comment.

Summary and key issues

The Environmental & Sustainability Strategy (ESS) 2023 - 2033 is presented with four key objectives as outlined below:

- **Strategic Alignment** references the Strategic Community Plan and the Corporate Business Plan and the role that the (ESS) plays in these frameworks.
- **Vision and Objectives** reinforces the direction set for environmental and sustainability processes within the City's Strategic Community Plan.
- **Self-assessment** details the bench marking community feedback and their requirements and how the City is positioned to meet these needs.
- **Toolset** identifies all the guiding documents used during the development of the ESS by the City.
- The **Action** list outlines actions and goals for the City to attain over the next 10 years.

A draft copy of the ESS will be made available for public comment with the focus for feedback to be on the written content of the document, as opposed to images, graphics etc. All comments will then be considered and pertinent feedback will be included. The document will be finalised and will undergo the process of being converted into a "publish ready" document with the inclusion of additional images, infographics etc. which will then be submitted to Council for final endorsement.

An Implementation Plan has also been developed to support the delivery of outcomes and actions outlined in the ESS and details the various activities to be undertaken during the life of the ESS. The ESS is intended to be a public document and will be available on the City's website while the Implementation Plan will remain as an operational document only.

Officer Recommendation

Sessions moved, Marks seconded

That the Standing Committee (Environmental) recommend that Council:

- 1. Endorse the draft Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 as contained in Attachment 11.1.1, for the purpose of advertising for a period of 28 days, seeking public comment.
- 2. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to make any further minor administrative amendments as required prior to publication.

4 votes to 0

For: Marks, Ryan, Sessions, Wolff Against:

Committee Notes

Questions were asked and responded to as follows:

- The minor changes to the Strategy include ensuring that the City complies with all the regulations, increased focus on engagement with the community and writing clearer to assist with compliance. All guidelines and frameworks remain the same.
- The comment "No breaches of environmental legislation relating to the clearing of native vegetation" relates to the City only. The City has put goals and targets in place to ensure that the City meets this standard.
- The City is working through the education process for water resource management. The City are working with the Water Corporation to focus on water-wise schemes and are trying to receive funding for this. The City's water resource management aligns with other strategies such as the Streetscape Strategy.
- The City has a Light Industry Inspector who inspects companies. This position was
 previously funded by the Government but it is now funded by the City. This position is
 also involved in helping assess planning and development applications.
- The Tree Preservation Order Policy is enforceable to a certain point to ensure trees remain on private property. The State Government are also looking at enforcing the retention of trees on private property through Planning legislation.
- The City aspire to decrease greenhouse gas emissions and are continuing to look at ways to create a more positive change. The City's current levels are better than average local governments. The City's pollution levels are closer to the average.
- The City can amend the statement on page 26 of the Strategy to state "the City should have an enhanced Waste Management Plan".
- There has been no waste audit of the administration building since 2019. The administration building has recycling and general waste bins.
- Tomato Lake had an algae outbreak in the lake in February 2023 and this was addressed by the end of March through water recycling. Aeration and the water temp are key factors in controlling algae outbreaks.
- The City can modify the Strategy to include a list of the seven contestable sites.

Location

Not applicable.

Consultation

Internal

In developing the ESS, significant internal consultation was undertaken with a number of teams within the City of Belmont. These included:

- Parks, Leisure and Environment
- Waste Services
- Planning Services
- Building Services

- City Facilities
- Business Planning, Improvement and Risk.

External

There has been no specific external stakeholder engagement undertaken to date, however following endorsement by Council, the draft ESS will be advertised for public comment for a period of 28 days.

In developing the ESS multiple revisions have been undertaken to ensure that it aligns with the City's strategic direction.

Based on the long-term strategic nature of this document, it has been determined that a best practice approach is to consult with the community in relation to the targeted outcomes associated with the ESS.

Strategic Community Plan implications

In accordance with the 2020 – 2040 Strategic Community Plan:

Goal 1: Liveable Belmont

Strategy: 1.5 Encourage and educate the community to embrace sustainable and healthy lifestyles

Goal 2: Connected Belmont

Strategy: 2.2 Make our City more enjoyable, connected and safe for walking and cycling

Strategy: 2.4 Promote alternative forms of transport

Goal 3: Natural Belmont

Strategy: 3.1 Protect and enhance our natural environment

Strategy: 3.2 Improve our River and waterways

Strategy: 3.3 Keep our City clean

Strategy: 3.4 Provide green spaces for recreation, relaxation and enjoyment

Strategy: 3.5 Promote energy and water efficiency, renewable energy sources, and reduce emissions and waste

Strategy: 3.6 Encourage sustainable development to guide built form

Goal 5: Responsible Belmont

Strategy: 5.1 Support collaboration and partnerships to deliver key outcomes for our City.

Policy implications

The ESS will support Council Policies No.45 – Environmental Purchasing and No.46 – Environment and Sustainability.

Statutory environment

This Strategy is an integral component of the City's Environmental Management System, which was first developed in 2006 under the standard of AS/NZS ISO 14001 – Environmental Management Systems.

Background

Following the expiry of the City's Environment and Sustainability Strategy in 2021, a comprehensive review of the City's environmental strategic goals and objectives was undertaken by the Parks, Leisure and Environment (PLE) team.

The newly developed ESS has been developed to guide the City over a ten year timeframe and is supported by an Implementation Plan which will assist the operational delivery of the outcomes and actions as outlined in the ESS.

The ESS sets clear objectives to enable continuous performance improvements in the areas of:

- Environmental Governance
- Urban Ecology and Biodiversity
- Water Resource Management and Protection
- Sustainably Built Environments
- Climate Resilient Energy and Transport and
- Waste and Resource Recovery.

The ESS and associated Plans adopt a life cycle and continuous improvement perspective to ensure that the City identifies and reviews its current performance and implements improvement strategies that manage the environmental impacts of its activities, products and services. The ESS has also been written to assist the City in complying to the AS/NZS ISO 14001 Standard (Environmental Management Systems).

The ESS is a publicly facing demonstration of the City's long-established Environment and Sustainability Policy which commits the City to:

• Setting objectives, targets and indicators to monitor environmental performance.

- Incorporating a continuous improvement philosophy that protects and enhances the natural environment, including remnant bushlands, wetlands, river foreshores and waterways.
- Engaging with the community to promote and encourage involvement in environmental initiatives current and emerging.
- Continuing to integrate environmental management into the culture of our organisation.
- Demonstrate, through leadership and the actions of our staff, the prevention of environmental impacts.

Officer Comment

The ESS identifies six key environment and sustainability themes, with compliance objectives, measures of success and environmental objectives being set under each theme.

Each compliance objective and environmental objective has been used to identify actions, incorporated in the ESS and Implementation Plan.

Once adopted, these themes will provide Key Performance Indicator reference points by which to benchmark the City's performance in relation to:

- Environmental Governance
- Urban Ecology and Biodiversity
- Water Resource Management and Protection
- Sustainably Built Environments
- Climate Resilient Energy and Transport and
- Waste and Resource Recovery.

Strategy Development	Leadership and Commitment*	Community Consultation	Council Adoption	Implementation	Review and Report
 Strategic Alignment. Identify Objectives and Strategies. Draft Implementation Plan. Stakeholder Engagement. Risk and Opportunities. 	 Executive and Internal Approvals. Review and endorse for Community Consultation. *AS/NZS 14001:2016 5.1 Leadership and Commitment 	 Reviewed by our Community and Stakeholders. Our community and key stakeholders are consulted for input. 	 Council adopt Strategy. The Strategy is updated with input from the Community and Strategy is finalised. 	• Implement Annual Plans and actions.	 Annual Reviews and identification of actions to achieve objectives and strategies. Review changes to the organisation (Strategy Development). Report on progress and updates.



Financial implications

There are no immediate financial implications required to deliver the ESS for the 2023-2024 financial year. Actions from the ESS and Implementation Plan can be accommodated within existing budgets. New projects will be undertaken in accordance with the City's Project Management Framework.

The specific projects and initiatives identified, will be subject to a detailed Feasibility Study and Business Case development, to be considered as part of the annual budget process and long-term financial plan, for consideration and approval by Council.

Resource Implications

There are no resource implications evident at this point in time, however should individual projects require additional resourcing in the future, these will be addressed through the City's Project Management Framework and budget process.

Environmental implications

The implementation of the ESS will enhance the City's local natural environment. Actions and associated tasks will consider lifecycle perspectives with a view to continued improvement.

Social implications

There are no social implications associated with this report.

Attachment details

Atta	achment No and title
1.	Draft Environment and Sustainability Strategy [11.1.1 - 31 pages]

CONSULTING DRAFT V.0 NOT FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

CITY OF BELMONT Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

January 2023

City of Belmont 215 Wright Street, Cloverdale Western Australia 6105 Locked Bag 379, Cloverdale Western Australia 6985 Open 8:30am - 4:45pm, Monday - Friday

9477 7222 belmont@belmont.wa.gov.au 9477 7224 (A/H) belmont.wa.gov.au



Contents

3
5
0
4
8
1
4
7
8

The City of Belmont acknowledges the Whadjuk Noongar people as the Traditional Owners of this land and we pay our respects to Elders past, present and emerging.

We further acknowledge their cultural heritage, beliefs, connection and relationship with this land which continues today.

We acknowledge all Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples living within the City of Belmont.



Environmental Management in the City of Belmont

This Strategy is an integral component of the City of Belmont's Environmental Management System, which was first developed in 2006 under the standard of AS/NZS *ISO 14001 – environmental management systems*. The City has maintained its certification through implementing best practice environment and sustainability initiatives, setting environmental performance objectives and fulfilling our compliance obligations. Our commitment to natural areas management, water management and sustainability is demonstrated by our high-quality natural areas, accolades, awards, and continued performance.

This Strategy and associated Plans adopt a life cycle perspective and continuous improvement, to ensure that the City strives for a better environment and manages the environmental aspects of the City's activities, products and services.¹

To assist in continuously improving the City's environmental management endeavours, the Environment and Sustainability Strategy will:

- Ensure we fulfill our Compliance Obligations
- Allow us to set and achieve Environmental Objectives and
- Enhance our environmental performance.

This will contribute to the City's long-established Environment and Sustainability Policy commitments of:

- Setting objectives, targets and indicators to monitor environmental performance
- Incorporating a continuous improvement philosophy that protects and enhances the natural environment, including remnant bushlands, wetlands, river foreshores and waterways
- Engaging with the community to promote and encourage involvement in environmental initiatives current and emerging and
- Continuing to integrate environmental management into the culture of our organisation with the commitment being demonstrated through leadership and the actions of our staff in the prevention of air, land or water pollution.²

To achieve this, the City has reviewed all of its environmental aspects, strategic alignment and emerging opportunities to place it at the forefront of environmental thinking.

¹ Technical Committee ISO/TC 207/SC 1 Environmental management systems, iso.org.

² City of Belmont. 2023. Environment and Sustainability Policy

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

The City's mix of amazing natural assets, well-established history in addressing environmental impacts, and emerging sustainability opportunities means the Strategy will focus on:

- 1. Knowledge, Partnerships and Environmental Governance
- 2. Urban Ecosystem Services Ecology and Biodiversity
- 3. Water Resource Management and Protection
- 4. Sustainably Built Environments
- 5. Climate Resilient Energy and Transport
- 6. Waste and Resource Recovery



Knowledge, Partnerships and Environmental Governance – Informing this Strategy

The City will engage with its community and stakeholders to inform its environmental management and good environmental governance. A key component of the ISO14001 standard is to monitor stakeholder needs, expectations and satisfaction.³ By doing this, we ensure our environmental management system and associated plans achieve the required outcomes appropriate to the City's services, environmental conditions, and geographic location.

The City will also take a key role in empowering its community to make greater contributions to the natural environment and sustainability initiatives. Where the City cannot directly contribute to the enhancement or resolution of environmental issues, it will work to influence those who can. In addition, to demonstrate the City's commitment to the natural environment, it will maintain its own environmental credentials.

Our Knowledge and Partnership performance

The City has maintained its ISO14001 certification since 2006, demonstrating our commitment to continual environmental improvement. The Environmental Management System sits within the City's Integrated Management System which provides a framework for the City to control the impact that its activities, products and services may have on the natural environment. To achieve this successfully the City commits to:

- Protecting the environment
- Mitigating adverse environment impacts
- Complying with its environmental obligations
- Enhancing its environmental performance and
- Communicating environmental information to relevant interested parties.⁴

The key documents of the Environmental Management System include the City's Environment and Sustainability Policy, Environmental Purchasing Policy, and this Strategy, with overall guidance from the Strategic Community Plan. To achieve the City's environmental objectives, commitments and obligations, the City implements various plans, work processes and tasks which reflect our 14001 requirements (**Figure 1**).

³ AS/NZS ISO 14001:2016 *Environmental management systems – Requirements with guidance for use* 4.2 Understanding the needs and expectations of interested parties

⁴ Ibid 0.2 Aim of an environmental management system.



Figure 1 Components within the City's Environmental Management System. *Proposed to be developed.

Ensure we fulfill our Compliance Obligations

The City must comply with environmental legislation pertinent to the City's operations, many of which are documented within this Strategy and are referred to as Compliance Obligations.⁵ These become the City's "legal obligations" and any breach is deemed a major non-conformity to the City's management system. However, the City can make commitments to other voluntary environmental obligations, such as those targets and goals noted in the Strategic Community Plan, the Environment and Sustainability Policy and this Strategy.

In addition, the Strategic Community Plan 2020-2040 specifies that the City will "Encourage and educate the community to embrace sustainable and healthy lifestyles", "Support and collaborate with local schools and businesses" and "Support collaboration and partnerships to deliver key outcomes for our City" respectively.

To inform compliance and environmental objectives within the management system, the City will engage with its interested parties at various opportunities and apply the below framework:

- Determine and have access to the Compliance Obligations related to its environmental aspects
- Determine how these Compliance Obligations apply to the organisation
- Take these Compliance Obligations into account when establishing, implementing, maintaining and continually improving its environmental management system.⁶

To ensure we remain compliant with environmental legislation, the City has implemented the following:

⁵ AS/NZS ISO 14001:2016 3.2.9 *Compliance Obligations* – legal requirements that an organisation must comply with and other requirements that an organisation has to or chooses to comply with, for example regulations, organisational and industry standards, contractual arrangements, agreements with community groups.

⁶ AS/NZS ISO 14001:2016 6.1.3 Compliance Obligations, 9.

- Compliance Accountability Listing and Compliance Calendar.⁷
- Continuous monitoring of environmental legislation, with applicable changes being reported to our leadership teams
- Compliance alerts and calendars are maintained within our central information system
- Annual Maintenance Plan Environment.

Set and achieve Environmental Objectives and Strategies

The City shall establish Environmental Objectives relevant to our significant environmental aspects and Compliance Obligations. In this, we will also consider our risks and opportunities to maximise environmental benefit.

The Environmental Objectives shall be:

- Consistent with the City's Environment and Sustainability Policy
- Measurable (where practicable)
- Monitored as per the implementation plan
- Communicated to our organisation and stakeholders and
- Updated as appropriate and documented.⁸

Therefore, all Environmental Objectives contained within this Strategy must be consistent with the above and the City's Environment and Sustainability Policy, which states that the City is committed to:

- 1. Undertake continual improvement of the Environmental Management System to enhance environmental performance of City operations.
- 2. Protection and enhancement of the natural environment and biodiversity values within the City of Belmont, including remnant bushland, wetlands, river foreshore and waterways.
- 3. Prevention of pollution to air, land or water, or damage to flora or fauna, minimising harm and degradation to the natural environment.
- 4. Efficient use of energy, water, paper and other resources, improving resource recovery and reducing waste to landfill and implementing renewable energy technologies to minimise the City's corporate carbon footprint.
- 5. Considering life cycle impacts and minimising single use disposable plastics.
- 6. Planning for and implementing measures to 'future proof' City operations against the predicted impacts of climate change.

⁷ As per Compliance Management Plan and associated process maps.

⁸ AS/NZS ISO 14001:2016 6.2.1 Environmental Objectives, 10.

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

7. Compliance with relevant environmental legislation and other obligations.⁹

To maintain working knowledge, our stakeholder partnerships and to ensure good environmental governance, the City will achieve the following objectives.

- 1.1. Develop, implement, and regularly review an organisation-wide Environment and Sustainability Strategy and Implementation Plan.
- 1.1.1. Draft and implement the implementation plan for the Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033.
- 1.1.2. Set objectives, targets and indicators to monitor environmental performance and review and report on outcomes.
- 1.2. Strategic actions to achieve objectives are identified and responsibilities, timeframes and budget requirements are assigned with progress monitored.
- 1.2.1. Develop annual implementation plans and maintenance plans.
- 1.2.2. Maintain processes and procedures.
- 1.3. Consider environmental aspects and implications in project and event management, procurement, decision-making and development of strategies and plans.
- 1.3.1. Continue to implement risk assessments in contracts and tenders.
- 1.3.2. Identify environmental aspects relating to City operations through divisional structure and activities.
- 1.3.3. Environment and sustainability objectives, goals and targets are considered in all City Strategies, Plans, Policies and procedures.
- 1.4. Maintain awareness of current and emerging environmental issues relevant to the City of Belmont.
- 1.4.1. Participate in regional initiatives which identify and work towards addressing regional environment and sustainability issues (i.e. Waterwise Council).
- 1.5. Manage potential environmental aspects associated with City operations and predicted impacts of climate change as specified under City of Belmont Policy Risk Management.
- 1.5.1. Review all new projects, operations and services to identify risks and opportunities.
- 1.5.2. Maintain risk register of environment risks.
- 1.5.3. Review all process maps and work instructions to identify environmental risks and opportunities.

⁹ City of Belmont. 2023. Environment and Sustainability Policy

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

- 1.5.4. Develop and maintain accurate mapping of environmental assets, management areas and other geospatial information relevant to the City's environmental objectives.
- **1.6.** Employees are aware of environmental legislative requirements relevant to Department activities.
- 1.6.1. Continue to implement the City's Risk Management procedures, including maintain its compliance obligations, compliance calendars and risk registers.
- 1.6.2. Undertake Environmental audits as per the City's Integrated Management System.
- 1.6.3. Communicate changes in environmental legislation as they arise and provide internal support to resolve significant impacts to the City's products and services.
- 1.7. Engage with the wider Belmont residential and business community to raise awareness of environmental issues and encourage sustainable living and pollution prevention practices.
- 1.7.1. Undertake community perception surveys.
- 1.7.2. Engage with the community through various City events and opportunities.
- 1.7.3. Promote and Communicate Environment and Sustainability initiatives and achievements to the broader community.

Knowledge and Partnership Goals

By 2028 the City should have

- Consulted the Community on this Strategy.
- Provided annual updates on the City's Environment and Sustainability Performance in the Annual Report.
- Continued to receive feedback from its community through perception surveys.
- Maintained its ISO 14001 certification.

Urban Ecosystem Services -Ecology and Biodiversity

The City's natural environment is enriched with remnant bushlands, the Swan River, waterways and wetlands. Our biological assemblages, remnant vegetation and water opportunities make the City an inviting and attractive place to live and work. This also presents the City with various opportunities to enhance the ecological and biodiversity values present within.

Currently the City maintains areas of '*Low forest, woodland or low woodland with scattered trees*' of '*Jarrah, banksia or casuarina Eucalyptus marginata, Banksia spp., Allocasuarina species*' toward the centre of the City, and woodlands of the southwest structure consisting of '*Jarrah, marri and wandoo Eucalyptus marginata, Corymbia calophylla, E. wandoo*' towards the Swan River.¹⁰ Our significant remnant bushlands include the Swan River Foreshore, Garvey Park, Tomato Lake, P.H. Dodd Reserve, Signal Hill and pockets within the Perth Airport (albeit not managed by the City). In total, the land coverage consists of approximately 117 hectares over 23 distinct natural spaces some of which contain the Threatened Ecological Community *Banksia woodlands.* These pockets of remnant vegetation provide significant refuge to migratory species protected under the *Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999* (Cth) and those listed for protection under *the Environmental Protection Act 1986* (WA), including Black Cockatoos, the Chuditch (*Dasyurus geoffroii*) and various flora species.¹¹

The biggest risk to the City's natural assets includes invasive weed species, unlawful clearing and impacts from the urban environment, including degradation from 'off path' use (tramping), spreading of dieback and other pathogens. To counter this, the City seeks to increase planting opportunities and safeguard natural areas.

Our Urban Ecosystem Services performance

The City has a long standing commitment to preserving ecological and biodiversity values through its Strategic Community Plan, Policy commitments and previous Environment Plans. The Strategic Community Plan 2020-2040 Goal 3, Natural Belmont, specifies that the City will "*Protect and enhance our natural environment*" and "*Provide green spaces for recreation, relaxation and enjoyment*".

Our environmental performance in the space of ecology and biodiversity to date has included:

• Ongoing weed and pest plant management within natural areas.

 ¹⁰ Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions Pre-European Vegetation Dataset, 2023.
 ¹¹ Government of WA Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions, January 2023 - Priority Flora, Fauna and Threatened Ecological Communities search

- Revegetation of our remnant bushlands to improve biodiversity and plant coverage.
- Increase of street trees and trees in reserves to uphold ecological services.
- Increased planting near to waterbodies, including implementing buffer zones.
- Continued identification and implementation of foreshore restoration projects along the Swan River.

	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021
ore ed	67 m	86 m	47 m	56 m	273 m	625 m design
Foreshore protected (Im)	Ascot	Rivervale	Ascot	Garvey	Various	stage
e e E	foreshore	and Ascot	Racecourse	Park and		
ਨ ਸ		foreshores	and Adachi	Adachi		
			Park	Park		
<u> </u>	3550	2115	1654	5142	6681	7655
e ; and ante	seedlings	seedlings	seedlings	seedlings	seedlings	seedings
Native seedlings and sedges planted	710 sedges	450 sedges	1100 sedges	411 sedges	3500 sedges	110 sedges

Figure 2 Historical achievements in Ecology and Biodiversity

Ensure we fulfill our Compliance Obligations

The City has a moral and legal obligation to protect the ecological and biodiversity values within the City of Belmont. Its legal obligations include:

Compliance Obligation	Reference
Prevent unlawful clearing of native trees and vegetation in City works.	Environmental Protection Act 1986 (EP Act).
Protection of priority fauna and flora and their assemblages. Protection of fauna of international significance.	Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016, Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999, and Planning and Development Act 2005.
Protect vegetation within the Swan River Foreshore.	Swan and Canning Rivers Management Regulations 2007.
Prevent the spread of declared weeds and invasive species.	Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Act 2007.

Set and achieve Environmental Objectives and Strategies

To achieve outcomes in the space of Urban Ecosystem Services, the City will implement the following objectives and Strategies.

- 2.1. Protect, enhance and expand natural areas and increase habitat connectivity and quality.
- 2.1.1. Consolidate species and planting lists for natural areas with a view to increase biodiversity, climate resilience and tree coverage.
- 2.1.2. Implement planting programs and revegetation plans to increase the quality of our natural areas.
- 2.1.3. Develop a local Bushland Protection Plan for natural areas.¹²
- 2.1.4. Develop a Foreshore Management Plan to continue foreshore restoration programs with a view to increase habitat, connectivity and parkland amenity.
- 2.2. Integrate biodiversity values, ecosystem services and ecosystem connectivity into the design, upgrade and maintenance of streetscapes, parks, wetlands, waterways and other open spaces.
- 2.2.1. Incorporate native plantings in streetscapes.
- 2.2.2. Identify priority wetlands, waterways and drainage basins for enhancement.
- 2.2.3. Improve community stewardship and capacity for planting native trees and shrubs on residential lands.
- 2.3. Manage significant environmental weeds, pests and plant diseases located on land and in water bodies managed by the City.
- 2.3.1. Identify weed management plans for environmental areas.
- 2.3.2. Implement biosecurity protocols at natural areas to prevent the spreading plant pathogens.
- 2.3.3. Continue to work with State agencies and landowners in the prevention of invasive species.

¹² As per SPP2.8 Bushland Policy for the Perth Metropolitan Region

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

Ecology and Biodiversity Goals

By 2028 the City should have

- Planted at least 4500 native shrub and tree seedlings per annum.
- Planted at least 1100 sedges and sedge strips per annum.
- Increased the quality of our natural spaces by eliminating 'Degraded' vegetation and enhancing them to 'Excellent'.¹³
- Had no breaches of environmental legislation relating to the clearing of native vegetation.
- Undertaken at least three major revegetation programs per year in remnant bushlands, the Swan River Foreshore and priority wetlands.
- Involved the community in over 25 community workshops and engagement programs.
- Developed a Foreshore Management Plan.
- Developed a Bushland Protection Plan for natural areas.



¹³ As per Keighery Condition Scale (1994) where 'Degraded' means the vegetations structure is severely impacted by disturbance. Scope for regeneration but not to a state approaching good condition without intensive management. 'Excellent' means vegetation structure intact, disturbance affecting individual species and weeds are non-aggressive species.

Water Resource Management and Protection

Water and waterways are essential to the health, wellbeing, and connectedness of people, communities and to our living environment. Water Resource Management and Protection includes the responsible consumption of all water resources (e.g. scheme water for drinking and groundwater for irrigation) and ensuring our urban fabric does not negatively impact on those resources (Water Sensitive Urban Design).

The City recognises the environmental, social and cultural importance of water and is committed to protecting and enhancing established water-adjacent land that we manage. In addition, the City will explore opportunities to improve the environmental value of highly modified wetlands and waterways. The City will also take a key role in ensuring its community is more empowered to improve water management at home and in their garden. Our own operations will remain water efficient and safeguard water resources, especially through preventing pollution events and reducing the impact our operations may have.

Our Water Resource Management and Protection performance

Over the last decade, the City has demonstrated a significant achievement in water resource management and protection. The City has worked to reduce its dependency on scheme water resources whilst recognising the need water has in a built environment. We've excelled in our parks and open spaces by implementing hydrozoning and we've been a Waterwise Council since 2011.

The Strategic Community Plan 2020-2040 Goal 3, Natural Belmont, specifies that the City will "*Protect and enhance our natural environment*" and "*improve our river and waterways*". Our environmental performance in the space of Water Resource Management and Protection to date has included:

- Ongoing monitoring of water quality within the stormwater network, including drains, lakes and wetlands.
- Continued retrofits within City facilities to ensure WELS rated fixtures are used.
- Light industrial land uses are assessed and, where required, businesses are supported in reducing their water impacts.
- The City achieved Waterwise Council Gold in 2021.
- Our community has maintained water consumption below Water Corporations target for the last six years.
- Reduced fertiliser dependency on irrigated areas near wetlands.

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

14

	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021
Potable Scheme Water in Facilities.	74,217 kL	78,378 kL	79,903 kL	79,903 kL	75,692 kL	74,077 kL
Communities' Potable Water Consumption ¹⁴	85 kL	85 kL	84 kL	82 kL	87 kL	84 kL
Groundwater is below the licenced allocation.			Achi	eved		
Businesses supported by our Environmental Assessment Project.	38 visits	39 visits	56 visits	36 visits	39 visits	9 visits *COVID reduction

Ensure we fulfill our Compliance Obligations

The City will continue to comply with water related legislation and policies to maximise the value of water and prevent resource contamination and waste. Our legal obligations include:

Compliance Obligation	Reference
The City's groundwater use does not exceed its Licence to take groundwater.	Rights in Water and Irrigation Act 1914 (WA).
Significant spills, discharges or environmental incidents are promptly cleaned up and reported to the Department of Water and Regulation.	Contaminated Sites Act 2003 (WA). Environmental Protection Act 1986 (WA).
Vegetation within the Swan River is protected with ecological and community benefits and amenity maintained.	Swan and Canning Rivers Management Regulations 2007.
Development approvals are given in accordance with the relevant environmental protection controls.	Environmental Protection Act 1986.
The City assists local businesses in remaining environmentally responsible and compliant through the Business Environmental Assessment Project.	The Environmental Protection (Unauthorised Discharges) Regulations 2004.

¹⁴ The Water Corporation goal is to maintain water consumption to below 125 kL per capita annually

Set and achieve Environmental Objectives and Strategies

- 3.1. Incorporate best practice water efficiency and Water Sensitive Urban Design (WSUD) principles in all Council operations, including the planning, design and maintenance of parks, facilities and stormwater systems managed by the City.
- 3.1.1. Continue to review Development Applications and condition stormwater disposal appropriately.
- 3.1.2. Enhance streetscapes with Water Sensitive Urban Design (WSUD) principles where achievable.
- 3.1.3. Implement Waterwise practices in parks irrigation to become climate resilient.
- 3.1.4. Continue to identify water efficiencies and retrofits in community facilities.
- 3.1.5. Maintain our Waterwise Council accreditation, achieving Platinum.
- 3.2. Take a catchment-based approach to the management of waterways and wetlands, including their foreshore areas.
- 3.2.1. Continue to monitor surface water quality to identify priority catchments and methods of reducing nutrients.
- 3.2.2. Improve wetlands through increased biodiversity and planting.
- 3.2.3. Increased the community's awareness of water resource use and management.
- 3.3. Minimise the City's operational risk of environmental discharges of pollutants and impacts on water resources.
- 3.3.1. Undertake to implement a Nutrient Intervention Management Plan to reduce nutrient levels in public open space management.
- 3.3.2. Continue to report environmental incidents such as chemical or hydrocarbon spills.
- 3.3.3. Continue to monitor groundwater use and allocation.
- 3.4. Respond to potential water quality issues and unauthorised emissions/discharges that could cause environmental contamination or otherwise negatively affect groundwater or surface water quality.
- 3.4.1. Continue to work with the business community to prevent discharges to the environment.

Water Resource Management and Protection Goals

By 2028 the City should have

- Maintained its Waterwise Council accreditation with potable consumption to within 10% of our water consumption in 2021.
- Become a Platinum Waterwise Council, the highest achievable outcome.
- Supported at least 200 small businesses in reducing their environmental impact.
- Had no breaches of environmental legislation relating to the taking of groundwater.
- Not caused an environmental incident through a chemical or hydrocarbon spill.
- Involved the community in over 25 community workshops and engagement programs having a water theme.
- Maintained its Green Stamp certification for the Operations Centre.



Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

17

Sustainably Built Environments

The City is committed to lead by example through the incorporation of best environmental and sustainability practices in the planning, construction and management of City facilities and infrastructure. This also extends to our Local Planning Scheme, planning controls and structure plans for the built environment. Once built, the urban fabric has the potential to influence the local environment for centuries to come. Therefore, it is critical in developing urban environments to encourage an urban fabric that supports the natural environment and is conducive to healthy communities.

The City is home to 42,078 people and this figure is expected to grow to 65,659 by 2041.¹⁵ Within the City's population, 22% are families with children, 6% are older people and 22% live alone.¹⁶ Ultimately, an increase in housing and supporting infrastructure will be required, as well as diversity in housing typology to support the various housing demographics. In addition, the City is home to practically every type of business, including multi-national and industrial-scale distribution centres, home-based businesses, a range of tourism, retail and hospitality venues which all contributes \$8.26 billion to Australia's Gross Regional Product as of June 2019.¹⁷

As an economic hub, a vibrant place to live and an attractive place to set up a future business, the City requires supporting built infrastructure that contributes to a greener and cleaner environment.

Our Sustainably Built Environment performance

The City has a demonstrated track record in supporting economic and personal growth. We continue to actively engage with residents and business owners to ensure that the built environment is supportive to the natural environment and does not contribute or result in detrimental environmental impacts.

The Strategic Community Plan 2020-2040 Goal 1 Liveable Belmont, Goal 3 Natural Belmont, Goal 4 Creative Belmont and Goal 5 Responsible Belmont, specifies that the City will:

- "Encourage and educate the community to embrace sustainable and healthy lifestyles"
- "Embrace technology, creativity and innovation to solve complex problems and improve our City"
- "Promote energy and water efficiency, renewable energy sources, and reduce emissions and waste"
- "Encourage sustainable development to guide built form" and

¹⁵ City of Belmont. 2023. Profile and statistics, figures sourced from the ABS ERP 2019.

¹⁶ ABS Census 2016.

¹⁷ Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries, 2019; .id - the population experts, 2020

• "Manage the City's assets and financial resources in a responsible manner and provide the best possible services for the community"

Our environmental performance in the space of Sustainably Built Environments to date has included:

- Belmont Hub being certified a 6-star Green Star building.¹⁸
- Implementing Water Sensitive Urban Design and permeable surfaces in the Epsom Ave, Faulkner Civic Precinct and Belmont Ave upgrades.
- Adoption of the Belmont Foreshore Precinct Plan, May 2018.

Ensure we fulfill our Compliance Obligations

The City will continue to abide by built environment related legislation and policies to enhance the built environment and to create a sustainable City. Our legal obligations include:

Compliance Obligation	Reference		
Applications are reviewed by the Development Control Group (DCG) to ensure there is no detrimental impact to the environment.	Planning and Development Act 2005. Environmental Protection Act 1986.		
Buildings and developments do not cause contamination.	Contaminated Sites Act 2003.		
Applications within the Swan River development control area are assessed for	Swan and Canning Rivers Management Act 2006.		
environmental sensitivity and referred to the relevant authority.	Environmental Protection (Swan and Canning Rivers) Policy 1998.		
Integrate environment and natural resource management with broader land use planning and decision-making whilst protecting, conserving and enhancing the natural environment.	State Planning Policy 2.0 - Environment and natural resources.		
Acid Sulfate soils are managed.	Contaminated Sites Act 2003.		
	Western Australian Planning Commission Planning Bulletin No. 64 – Acid Sulphate Soils (2004).		
Buildings are sustainable and contribute to healthy environments and healthy living whilst complying with design standards.	Building Act 2011. Building Code of Australia.		

¹⁸ Green Building Council of Australia. 2023. Green Star Number 2695. https://www.gbca.org.au/projectdirectory.asp?_ga=2.214153559.1715737554.1592175243-217341547.1588028417

Set and achieve Environmental Objectives and Strategies

- 4.1. City facilities incorporate Environmentally Sustainable Development (ESD) principles.
- 4.1.1. Sustainable Best Practices are incorporated in City buildings and infrastructure at time of development, renewal and in ongoing operations.
- 4.2. Integrate sustainable development principles into the City's planning framework, taking into account the WA State Planning context.
- 4.2.1. A Sustainable Development Guide is developed.
- 4.2.2. The City develops a Local Planning Policy for trees and vegetation on private property.
- 4.3. The built form and urban development within the City of Belmont is environmentally sustainable and resilient to climate change.
- 4.3.1. Encourage ESD and WSUD through the City's local planning framework.
- 4.3.2. Future climate scenarios are incorporated into the City's planning framework to safeguard development and operations.
- 4.4. Through land use planning and development control, consider the impact of future development on the environment, including potential offsite environmental impacts.
- 4.4.1. Potentially contaminating land uses (existing and proposed) are identified, and associated risks of pollution of land, air and water are minimised.
- 4.4.2. Planning applications and building applications are reviewed with a view to encourage sustainable practices.

Sustainably Built Environment Goals

By 2028 the City should have

- Developed a Sustainable Development Guideline for developments within the City.
- Managed its contaminated sites effectively.
- Undertaken audits of its facilities to maximise sustainability initiatives.



Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

20

Climate Resilient Energy and Transport

The City acknowledges that climate change will continue to have a significant effect on the Western Australian environment, society and economy, and the Local Government sector. Human behaviours, pollution and consumption patterns have both immediate and future impacts on the climate and environment.¹⁹ To ensure the City is being environmentally responsible and to safeguard it against future climate scenarios, appropriate action is required.

Whilst water resources and biodiversity have been addressed in other sections of this Strategy as they relate to climate change, the City will need to focus on climate resilient energy and transport options to support its operations and the community. Climate resilience should be regarded as being adaptive within the scope of the organisation and responsible for its potential impacts and emissions. It should also strive to remain socially responsible to the community. Efforts to reduce or limit emissions need to be implemented whilst managing the expenditure of resources in a direction which is beneficial to the City's communities; our community should be empowered to act and respond to climate change, with the City safeguarding services that support the community's wellbeing.²⁰

Our Climate Resilient Energy and Transport performance

Extreme heat events are predicted to impact our community, energy supply and use of our facilities.²¹ The City therefore needs to be adaptive in maintaining its services whilst addressing these impacts. The Strategic Community Plan 2020-2040 Goal 3 Natural Belmont and Goal 4 Creative Belmont specifies that the City will "*promote energy and water efficiency, renewable energy sources, and reduce emissions and waste*" and "*embrace technology, creativity and innovation to solve complex problems*".

Since signing the WALGA Declaration on Climate Change in 2012, the City has progressed with:

• Seven contestable sites (sites using greater than 50,000 kWh pa) are energised by renewable energy, offsetting 100% of their CO2e emissions since May 2022.

²⁰ Godden, Naomi Joy, Doreen Wijekoon, and Kylie Wrigley. 2022. "Social (In)Justice, Climate Change and Climate Policy in Western Australia." *Environmental Sociology*, May, 1–11. https://doi.org/10.1080/23251042.2022.2069216.

²¹ Brown, Helen, Katrina Proust, Barry Newell, Jeffery Spickett, Tony Capon, and Lisa Bartholomew. 2018. "Cool Communities—Urban Density, Trees, and Health." *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health* 15 (7): 1547. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph15071547.

¹⁹ The Western Australian Local Government Declaration on Climate Change; signed by the City of Belmont 15 May 2012 and WALGA Policy Statement endorsed by State Council July 2018 - https://walga.asn.au/policy-advocacy/our-policy-areas/environment/climate-change.

- Five solar photovoltaic systems have been installed on City buildings, including the Ascot Kayak Club (10kW), Operations Centre (40kW), Harman Park Community Centre (10kW), Belmont Sports and Recreation Centre (30kW), and Belmont Hub (100kW).
- Belmont Hub achieved 6-Star Green Star for 'Design' and 'As Built'.²²
- Annual retrofits have continued, removing fluorescent and metal halide internal and external lights and replacing them with LEDs.
- The City's light-vehicle fleet's average combined tailpipe emissions have remained below 188g CO2/km.

Ensure we fulfill our Compliance Obligations

The City will continue to abide by Climate Resilient Energy and Transport related legislation and policies to create a sustainable City.

Our legal obligations include:

Compliance Obligation	Reference
43% reduction from 2005 levels by 2030 and net zero by 2050.	Climate Change Act 2022, WALGA's Policy Statement on Climate Change. ²³
Report on greenhouse gas emissions as required.	National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act 2007 (NGER Act).
Prevent the use of banned substances and gasses in operations.	Product Emissions Standards Act 2017. Ozone Protection and Synthetic Greenhouse Gas Management Act 1989 (Commonwealth).



²² Green Building Council of Australia. 2023. Green Star Number 2695. https://www.gbca.org.au/project-directory.asp?_ga=2.214153559.1715737554.1592175243-217341547.1588028417
 ²³ Local Government is not bound by the Climate Change Act 2022 or its targets, however the City my choose to adopt the same or similar reductions in emissions and uptake on renewables. WALGA Policy endorsed by State Council July 2018 and becoming a sector wide position.

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

22

Set and achieve Environmental Objectives

5.1. Ensure our operations are resilient to climate change.

- 5.1.1. Develop a Future Energy Action Plan to ensure energy is sourced sustainability and used efficiently, moving towards 100% renewable energy use by 2050 and achieving emissions targets.
- 5.1.2. Monitor the progress of climate change initiatives and communicate achievements to Council and Community.

5.2. Our community is equipped to face climate change challenges.

5.2.1. Improve education and awareness, raising our community's capacity in climate change mitigation, adaptation and impact reduction.

5.3. Our fleet and transport options are fit-for-purpose and sustainable.

- 5.3.1. Minimise fuel use and emissions of vehicles and plant used in connection with City operations and support initiatives aimed at reducing reliance on fossil fuels in relation to transportation.
- 5.3.2. Support "travel smart" initiatives to increase uptake of alternative forms of transport.

Climate Resilient Energy and Transport Goals

By 2028 the City should have

- Engaged its community in support of their climate change initiatives.
- Developed a Future Energy Action Plan.
- Reviewed its carbon footprint with forecasted reduction targets to achieve net zero by 2050.
- Increased its use of renewable energy and supporting technologies by 50% with a forecast to achieve 100% by 2033.



Waste and Resource Recovery

With an anticipated growing population, waste management is an important consideration. The amount of space available for landfill is limited and waste-to-landfill produces greenhouse gas emissions, contaminates the environment and will exhaust available space. In addition, valuable resources can be lost in the disposal of waste, increasing their demand. In contrast, recovery, reuse, reprocessing and recycling all avoid greenhouse gas emissions that would otherwise be generated in the manufacture and transport of new materials and items.

The City's approach to waste avoidance and minimisation are underpinned by the application of Waste Hierarchy principles, which ranks management options in order of their general environmental undesirability. In following the hierarchy, Western Australian's are asked to avoid, recover, and protect resources.²⁴

- Avoid 10% reduction in waste generation per capita by 2025 and 20% by 2030.
- Recover increase material recovery to 70% by 2025, 75% by 2030.
- Protect No more than 15% of waste generated in Perth and Peel regions is landfilled by 2030 and all waste is managed or disposed to better practice facilities.

Our Waste and Resource Recovery performance

The City continues to follow the Waste Authority's guidance on waste disposal in Western Australia.

The Strategic Community Plan 2020-2040 Goal 3 Natural Belmont specifies that the City will *"Keep our City clean"*. In addition, as an organisation, we've worked to reduce our own waste footprint:

- Committed to reducing use of single use plastics in City operations where appropriate.
- A Waste Minimisation Plan was developed for the Faulkner Civic Buildings, encompassing the Civic Centre, Belmont Hub and former Library
- Our Council reduced printed councillor communications (sheets per councillor) by 70% between 2016 and 2019.
- The City's Civic Centre reduced disposal of recyclable materials from 58.3% to 16% in its general waste in 2019.

²⁴ Waste Authority WA. 2023. Strategic Direction

https://www.wasteauthority.wa.gov.au/about/view/strategic-direction

Ensure we fulfill our Compliance Obligations

The City will continue to abide by Waste and Resource Recovery related legislation and policies to enhance the built environment and to create a sustainable City.

Our legal obligations include:

Compliance Obligation	Reference
Appropriate waste management.	<i>Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act 2007 (WARR Act).</i>
Adhere to single use plastics ban.	Environmental Protection (Prohibited Plastics and Balloons) Regulations 2018.
Dispose of trade waste under permit.	Environmental Protection (Controlled Waste) Regulations 2004.

Set and achieve Environmental Objectives

6.					
6.1.	The City applies best waste minimisation practices across all areas of operations, including in the provision of municipal waste services.				
6.1.1.	Waste Hierarchy principals are applied to City operations to minimise waste generation and disposal to landfill and achieve best reuse and recovery outcomes.				
6.1.2.	Efficient use of paper and other resources, improving resource recovery and reducing waste to landfill and implementing renewable energy technologies to minimise the City's corporate carbon footprint.				
6.2.	Our local community contributes to Western Australia becoming a sustainable, low-waste, circular economy in which human health and the environment are protected from the impacts of waste.				
6.2.1.	 Provide our residential community with best practice waste disposal options, underpinned by Waste Hierarchy principals. 				
6.2.2.	Considering life cycle impacts in our procurement of goods and services.				
6.3.	Waste does not end up in our natural areas or waterways.				

6.3.1. Implement measures to minimise and manage littering, dumping and other inappropriate disposal or accumulation of waste on City managed land.

Waste and Resource Recovery Goals

By 2028 the City should have

- Developed a Waste Management Plan including guidelines for waste minimisation throughout the City's Operations.
- Managed the impact waste has within the Community and the Environment within the City.
- Contributed to Western Australia becoming a sustainable and low waste economy mindful of the actions taken now for future generations.

Implementation, Review and Monitoring of this Strategy

The following review structure will be adopted for the life of the Strategy.



Appendix A – Strategy Development (Internal Consultation Only)

Strategic Alignment

Align Environment and Sustainability Strategy objectives with Strategic Community Plan

Objectives and strategies identify and align with the Strategic Community Plan 2020 – 2040.

This Strategy takes input from and aligns with:

- Belmont Foreshore Precinct Plan (May 2018)
- Sustainable Transport Plan 2019-2023
- The Local Planning Scheme No. 15
- Urban Forest Strategy: Canopy Plan 2019-2024

This Strategy does not include specific objectives, strategies, goals and targets that are identified in other City Plans or Strategies are not included.

- Access and Inclusion Plan 2018-2021
- Age Friendly Belmont Plan 2017-2021
- Asset Management Strategy 2021 2025
- Belmont on the Move: Integrated Movement Network Strategy
- Community Safety Strategy 2018-2021
- Multicultural Strategy 2020 and Beyond, Celebrating our Diversity
- Placemaking Strategy 2018-2023
- Public Open Space Strategy
- Reconciliation Action Plan 2015-2017
- Youth Strategy 2019 and Beyond

Identify changes in organisation scope, services, and products

City's services documented in-----

Identify external environmental conditions which can affect the organisation

Urban Ecosystem Services - Ecology and Biodiversity

- <u>State Planning Policy 2.8</u> Bushland policy for the Perth Metropolitan Region
- Bush forever (Western Australian Planning Commission 2000)
- <u>Protection of naturally vegetated areas in urban and peri-urban areas</u> (Environmental Protection Authority, 2021)
- <u>Environmentally Sensitive Areas under the Environmental Protection (Clearing of Native Vegetation) Regulations 2004 (Clearing Regulations)</u> (Department of Water and Environmental Regulation, 2023)

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

28



Objectives and Strategies clearly link
back to SCP.Each section identifies clear SCP links.Information gathered from community
perception surveys to inform Strategies.Community Perception Survey
2018 (Doc Set ID 3843332)

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 2023-2033 V.0

29

	2019 (Doc Set ID 4429348)	
	2021 (Doc Set ID 5187490)	
	2022 (Doc Set ID 5499390)	
Identify risks and opportunities.	RMSS	
Western Australian and Australian goals	Identified in External Environmental	
and targets?	conditions which can affect the	
Emerging trends and constraints?	organisation	

Draft Implementation Plan

Identify annual actions to achieve Strategies and Goals.	Pending Internal review of goals, objectives and strategies.
Consult with stakeholders for ownership.	objectives and strategies.
Identify indicative costs and resource	
commitments.	
Assign responsibilities.	
Nominate timeframes.	

Stakeholder Engagement

Liaise with key internal stakeholders for interdepartmental efficiencies.	Our internal stakeholders include all business areas.		
Ensure strategies and objectives are not duplicated.	Internal consultation undertaken to ensure proposed objectives, strategies and actions are not duplicated or contradict those located in other documents.		
Consult with Key Internal Process Owners, Risk Owners, and other interested parties.	Consulting Draft circulated to identified process owners, risk owners and OLT.		
Identify key external interested parties for consultation (State Government, Local Government, Community Groups, Associations).	 Our external stakeholders will include: Consulting Draft: The WA Local Government Association (WALGA). The South East Regional Centre for Urban Landcare (SERCUL). The Western Australian Turf Club. Perth Airport. Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries. Department of Water and Environmental Regulation. Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions. Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage. City of Bayswater (Bordering LG and shared waterway). 		

 City of Canning (Bordering LG). City of Kalamunda (Bordering LG). City of Swan (Bordering LG). Town of Bassendean (Bordering LG and shared waterway). Town of Victoria Park (Bordering LG).
 Full Draft for Public Comment: Residents of the City of Belmont – via Belmont connect. Businesses within the City of Belmont – via Belmont Business Advisory Group.

Risk and Opportunities.

Compliance obligations.	SP10 – Organisational Risk with risks registered in RMSS. Accountability Listing (Doc Set ID 5385969). EnviroLaw. Compliance Calendar.
Community expectations.	Catalyse survey and consultation
Environmental risks and hazards.	SP10 – Organizational Risk with risks registered in RMSS
Environmental opportunities.	To be workshopped.
Emergency Preparedness and Response	



City of Belmont

215 Wright Street, Cloverdale Western Australia 6105
Locked Bag 379, Cloverdale Western Australia 6985
Open 8:30am - 4:45pm, Monday - Friday
9477 7222 belmont@belmont.wa.gov.au
9477 7224 (A/H) belmont.wa.gov.au



12 Register update of items

Officer responses to the Register Update of Items from the Standing Committee (Environmental) are listed below.

Date submitted	Item No.	Item Heading	Responsible Officer	Officer comment
Nil.				

13 Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Standing Committee (Environmental) will be advised.

14 Closure

There being no further business, the Presiding Member thanked everyone for their attendance and closed the meeting at 7.04pm.

Minutes confirmation certification

The undersigned certifies that these Minutes of the Standing Committee (Environmental) Meeting held on 19 July 2023 were confirmed as a true and accurate record at the Ordinary Council Meeting held 22 August 2023:

Signed by the Person Presiding:

PRINT name of the Person Presiding:

ROBERT ROSSI

City of Belmont | Standing Committee (Environmental) - 19 July 2023 | 47